CCASE:

SOL (MSHA) V. WOODRI NG
DDATE:

19940808

TTEXT:



~1716

FEDERAL M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVI EW COWM SSI ON
OFFI CE OF ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGES
2 SKYLINE, 10th FLOOR
5203 LEESBURG PI KE
FALLS CHURCH, VIRG NIA 22041

SECRETARY OF LABOR, . ClIVIL PENALTY PROCEEDI NGS
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH :
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , . Docket No. WVEST 94-84-M
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WOODRI NG COVPANY,
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Appear ances: Kristi Floyd, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U. S.
Department of Labor, Denver, Col orado, for
Petitioner;
Mark L. Stermitz, Esq., Warden, Christiansen
Johnson, & Berg, Kalispell, Montana, for
Respondent .

Bef ore: Judge Anthan
Overvi ew of the Case

Earl Wbodring is the sole proprietor of Respondent. He
works intermttently crushing rock at two sites near Kalispell
Mont ana, and sells it to his sons, who are in the road
construction business, and a few other people (Tr. 6, 251-52,
293). He generally works alone but in late July, 1993 he hired
an enpl oyee, Joseph Hartley, to assist himin preparations for a
nove fromhis Batavia Lane site to his other work | ocation on
Bl acknmore Lane (Tr. 250-56).

On the afternoon of July 27, 1993, MSHA I nspector Ronald
CGol dade drove by Respondent's Batavia Lane worksite and noticed
that the crusher was operating (Tr. 199, 307). He returned the
next norning to conduct an inspection. Respondent had to crush a
certain quantity of rock in order to extricate its crusher from
the Batavia site to nove it (Tr. 256, 295). Despite working 8
hours on the July 28, Respondent had to continue crushing rock at
the site on July 29 and 30, before it could nove its equi pnent
(Tr. 316).

By the end of the inspection, Goldade had i ssued Respondent
17 citations, many for failure to guard or adequately guard a
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nunber of pulleys, drive shafts, and pinch points. The issue
with regard to nost of these citations is whether there was
sufficient mner exposure to these unguarded or insufficiently
guarded areas to mandate guardi ng under MSHA standards. MSHA
proposed a civil penalty totalling $1,389 for the alleged
violations. | affirmnost of the citations and assess ci Vi
penalties totalling $818.

The individual citations

Citation 4331562: |nspector Col dade observed the tai
pulley to the crusher feed conveyor system which was conpletely
unguarded (Tr. 14-15, Exhibits 2a-2c). This pulley was 2 feet
above ground | evel and was adjacent to a narrow wal kway (Tr. 15,
18). A guard had been in place over the pulley prior to July 28.
M. Woodring apparently renmoved the guard on the nmorning of July
28 to remove nmud and debris fromthe conveyor and did not repl ace
it (Tr. 259-60). M. Hartley was observed by the inspector in
all areas around the crusher, including near the cited tai
pulley (Tr. 15-16, 210).

ol dade issued citation No. 4331562 to Respondent alleging a
significant and substantial violation of 30 C.F. R 0O 56.14112(h).
That standard requires that guards be securely in place while
machi nery is operated. Contact with the unguarded pulley was
reasonably likely in that a person could trip or fall on the
rubble in the wal kway and touch the pulley while reaching out to
break his fall (Tr. 21). In the event of such an accident, it is
reasonably likely that one would incur a disabling injury to his
finger or hand (Tr. 21).

The fact that Respondent had guarded this pulley prior to
July 28, suggests that it recognized that guardi ng was required.
Even if that were not the case, the possibility that an enpl oyee
may trip or fall into an unguarded novi ng nachine part is
sufficient to mandate guardi ng under MSHA standards, even if the
unguarded novi ng machine part is not in an area in which
enpl oyees normal ly performwork Brighton Sand & Gravel, 13 FMSHRC
127 (ALJ January 1991).

I find that the Secretary has established the violation as
al l eged, although it nmay have been nore appropriately cited under
section 56.14107(a), the provision requiring the guarding of
nmovi ng machine parts. | also find that the violation was
significant and substantial ("S&S").

To establish an "S&S" violation the Secretary nmust show 1) a
violation of a mandatory safety standard; 2) a discrete safety
hazard; 3) a reasonable likelihood that the hazard contributed to
wWill result in an injury in the course of continued normal m ning
operations; and 4) a reasonable likelihood that the injury in
guestion will be of a reasonably serious nature, Mathies Coa
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Conmpany, 6 FMSHRC 1 (January 1984); U. S. Steel Mning Co., Inc.
6 FMSHRC 1573 (July 1984). These el enents have been established
with regard to citation No. 4331562.

| assess a $111 penalty, the same as that proposed by the
Secretary. | conclude that Respondent's negligence, in failing
to replace a guard when it planned to operate the crusher, and
the gravity of the injury that would |ikely occur if the
unguarded pul |l ey was contacted, warrant such a penalty. This
penalty is consistent with the other section 110(i) penalty
criteria. Respondent has stipulated that the total proposed
penalty will not conpromi se its ability to stay in business
(Tr. 5). Wodring's prior history of violations (Exh. P-1), its
size, and good faith in abating the violation, do not make such a
penal ty i nappropriate.

Citation No. 4331563: On the primary crusher feed
conveyor, |nspector Gol dade observed a guard over a pulley and
drive shaft which was hinged on one side and not affixed to the
other side so that it could be lifted up to lubricate the shaft
(Tr. 22-26, 263, Exh. 3a, 3b).

The citation was issued pursuant to section 56.14112(b),
whi ch requires guards to be securely in place while machinery is
bei ng operated. | vacate this citation because | concl ude that
the guard was securely in place. Contact with the drive shaft
coul d not occur accidently. The nmoving machi ne part could be
exposed only if an enployee purposely lifted the guard (Tr. 29).

In the past MSHA accepted hinged guards (Tr. 31-32).
However, its policy changed with regard to such guards due to
injuries incurred by mners nmoving these guards. MSHA policy
changes are not binding on the Comr ssion or the regul ated
comunity, See e.g., King Knob Coal Conpany, 3 FMSHRC 1417
(June 1981). As the standard does not by its express terns
prohi bit hinged guards, and MSHA at one tine interpreted its
standard to allow them a change in this substantive requirenent
can only be made through notice and comrent rul emaki ng.

Citation No. 4331569: This citation alleges that the guard
on the under conveyor systemon the primary jaw crusher was not
provided with a nmeans to secure the guard in place in that the
guard was constructed with hinges. The |ast sentence of the
citation states, "The guard provi ded adequate coverage of the
tail pulley area but nmust be secured in place during operation."

At hearing the Secretary introduced photographic exhibit P-9

in support of the alleged violation. Inspector Coldade testified
that material build-up had pushed the guard away fromthe
conveyor franme, exposing the pulley (Tr. 34-36). Nothing in the

citation itself, however, indicates that the pulley cited was
exposed. The essence of the violation described in the citation
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is that the guard was of a hinged construction. Gven this
apparent discrepancy, | am not persuaded that Exhibit P-9 depicts
the condition described in citation No. 4331569.

As with citation No. 4331563, | do not believe that the
Secretary can prohibit the use of a hinged guard under section
56.14112(b) without rulemaking. |, therefore, vacate citation
No. 4331569.

Citation No. 4331564: |nspector Col dade observed the bul
wheel drive to the jaw crusher in notion (Tr. 39-42). Although
nost of this wheel was guarded, the bottomtwo feet, which was 4
feet 10 inches above the ground was not (Tr. 42-49, exhibits P-4,
4b). CGol dade concl uded that the wheel had spokes because he
could see through it (Tr. 212). M. Wodring, however, testified
that the wheel was solid (Tr. 265-66), which would clearly nake
it less dangerous. G ven the fact that Exhibit P-4 nmakes it
appear that the wheel was solid, | credit M. Wodring's
testi nony.

Their remains the issues of whether there was sufficient
exposure to the wheel and whether a solid wheel can cause injury,
t hus, requiring guardi ng under section 56.14107(a). In this
regard | credit the testinony of the inspector that contact with
the wheel was possible if an enployee tripped or fell (Tr. 49)
and conclude that an enployee could sustain a mnor injury, such
as a burn (Tr. 301-02). |, therefore, affirmthe citation and
assess a $25 civil penalty--given the low gravity and negligence
of Respondent.

Citation No. 4331565: In one area of the crusher there was
a 3 1/2 foot high stairway leading to an elevated platform (Tr.
52, Exh. P-5a). Inspector Col dade observed M. Hartley used this

stairway and platform (Tr. 216). Underneath this platform and
stai rway was an unguarded drive shaft with protruding bolts, 3
feet above the ground, and nearby was an unguarded set of trunion
wheels rotating in the opposite direction of a |arge roto vater
drum (Tr. 50-59, 68, Exh 5a-5c).

The preponderance of the evidence is that the roto vater
drum rotated upwards which nmade injury by getting caught between
the drum and the trunion wheels unlikely (Tr. 267). Although
find that this violation is not "S&S", the potential hazard is
sufficient to affirma violation under the standard.

Simlarly, although the drive shaft could be contacted by an
enpl oyee who fell or tripped in his normal route of travel, such
an accident was unlikely because the drive shaft was underneath
the el evated wal kway. 1, therefore, find this also to be non
"S&S" and assess a $25 civil penalty for this citation
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Citation No. 4331567: At the end of the crushing process,
the green stacker conveyor expels the crushed rock onto a
stockpile (Tr. 70). On this conveyor the head pulley was
conpl etely unguarded and the tail pulley was partially guarded
(Tr. 70, 76, Exh. 7c). The head pulley area had a protruding
shaft as well as an unguarded chain drive (Exhs. 7a and 7hb).

As to the tail pulley, which was 18 i nches above the ground
and accessible to enpl oyees, Respondent concedes that the guard
did not extend forward sufficiently to protect the protruding
shaft fromcontact (Tr. 310-311). On this basis alone | affirm
this citation as an "S&S" violation with regard to the tai

pul | ey.

Wth respect to the head pulley, the parties disagree as to
whether it was within 7 feet of the ground. |If it was nore than
7 feet above the ground it did not have to be guarded under
section 56.14107. |nspector Coldade testified that he held a
tape fromthe ground directly below to the head pulley and
nmeasured a di stance of 4 feet (Tr. 72, 85). Respondent contends
that the pulley was at |east 8 feet above the ground and the
poi nt from whi ch Gol dade neasured is not directly bel ow the
pulley (Tr. 269-272, Exhs. 7a and 7b). Because M. Wodring did
not take neasurenents hinmself on the day of the inspection, |
credit the testinmony of M. Goldade and find an "S&S" viol ation
with regard to the head pulley area.

The shaft and chain drive were conpl etely unguarded and it
is reasonably likely that in the normal course of mning
operations an enpl oyee coul d contact these hazards and sustain a
serious injury. G ven the criteria in section 110(i),
particularly the negligence and gravity of Respondent, | assess
the $111 civil penalty proposed by the Secretary.

Citation No. 4331568: Next to a 16-inch wi de wal kway on the
crusher, Inspector Gol dade observed a head pulley drive shaft
t hat was guarded on the side but not on the top (Tr. 87-99, 220-
24, Exh. P-8b). He issued a citation alleging a violation of
section 56.14107(a) because he was concerned that an enpl oyee
m ght slip or fall and accidently reach behind the guard and
contact the universal joint of the drive shaft (Tr. 223-24).

I conclude that there was sufficient exposure to the hazard
to affirma violation but that it was not reasonably likely that
soneone would contact this shaft. |, therefore, affirmthe
violation as a non-significant and substantial violation. As |
al so think the need for a guard on the shaft was not obvious,
consi der Respondent's degree of negligence to be very low |
assess a $25 civil penalty for the violation.

Citation No. 4331571: At the secondary crusher system
I nspector Gol dade found a pulley and drive shaft that were



~1721

exposed because part of the guard covering them had been cut away
(Tr. 101-105, 227-228, Exhs. 10a and 10b). If an enpl oyee
slipped or fell while walking through this area they could
contact either the pulley or the drive shaft, although they would
have to reach up under the guard to touch the drive shaft

(Tr. 228).

G ven the fact that an enpl oyee who slipped woul d be kept
away fromthe shaft and pulley by the upper portion of the guard
that remained, | conclude that injury was not reasonably likely
and affirmthis citation as a non-significant and substantia
violation. Also considering Respondent's negligence in not
extending the guard as low, | assess a $25 civil penalty for this
vi ol ati on.

Citation No. 4331566: This citation was issued pursuant to
section 56.11002 because two el evated wal kways and a staircase
were not provided with railings (Tr. 108-116, Exhs. 5a & 5b, 6a &
6b). One of the wal kways and the staircase were | ocated over the
unguarded shaft and near the trunion wheels discussed with
reference to citation No. 4331565. The handrails in this area
had been renoved by Respondent the previous day in preparation
for nmoving the crusher (Tr. 277). Gven the fact that work other
t han breaki ng down the crushing machi ne continued at the site on
the day of the inspection, the inpending nove is not a mitigating
ci rcunst ance

The ot her wal kway w thout handrails was 8 feet above ground
| evel and, therefore, a fall fromit was reasonably likely to
result in serious injury (Tr. 109-110, 116). | affirmthe
citation as a significant and substantial violation and assess a
$75 penalty, which | deem appropriate giving particular
consideration to what | believe is the noderate gravity of the
vi ol ati on.

Citation No. 4331572: |nspector Col dade cited Respondent
for failure to make available to MSHA records of his daily
exam nati ons of the workplace for hazardous conditions pursuant
to section 56.18002(b). Goldade testified that he asked
M. Wodring for the records and that Whodring said he didn't
have any (Tr. 119). M. Wodring testified that he does nmmintain
such records but couldn't produce themon July 28 because he had
sent themto his other worksite in anticipation for his nove
(Tr. 278).

| f Respondent made such records, kept them at a different
| ocation, and offered to make them available to the Secretary, |
woul d vacate the citation. Section 56.18002(b), unlike section
50. 40, for exanple, does not require that the subject records be
kept at the mne site. |, therefore, conclude that, if
Respondent nmade the records and kept them at another site, it
woul d not necessarily violate the instant regul ation.
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However, | affirmthis citation. Respondent is required to
make an exami nation of the worksite every day and meke a record
of it. Wbodring worked at the Batavia Lane site on July 27 and
there is no evidence that would |lead ne to believe that if an
exam nation was made on the 27th that the record nade of it was
sent that evening or the following norning to the other worksite.
I find that, at least for July 27, Respondent violated the cited
regulation in failing to keep a record of its workpl ace
exam nation and making it available to the Secretary. | assess a
$25 civil penalty.

Citation No. 4331573: Respondent was cited for failure to
have adequate first aid supplies, including stretchers and a
bl anket, pursuant to section 56.15001. Although M. Col dade's
testi mony suggests that Respondent had no first aid supplies on
site, | credit M. Wodring's testinony that he had all the
required itens except for the stretchers and bl anket (Tr. 124,
278-29) .

Neverthel ess, the standard requires that stretchers and
bl ankets be kept convenient to working areas. Therefore, a
violation of the regulation has been established. | assess a $25
civil penalty for this violation

Citation No. 4331574: Inspector Gol dade observed a
conpressed oxygen and a conpressed acetylene cylinder in the back
of a pick-up truck at the site. The valves of these cylinders
were not covered (Tr. 127-131). He, thus, cited Respondent for a
violati on of section 56.16006, which requires that such val ves be
covered while being transported or stored.

M. Woodring testified that he used these cylinders on
July 28 for about a half-hour to weld a guard (Tr. 279, 311-12).
This raises the issue of what is "stored" within the nmeani ng of
the regulation. |In FMC Corporation, 6 FMSHRC 1566, 1569 (July
1984), the Conmi ssion held that the word "storage" includes
short-term storage, Al so see Phel ps Dodge Corporation, 6 FMSHRC
1930 (ALJ, August 1984). | conclude that when Respondent
finished using the cylinders in this case they were "stored"
within the meaning of the regulation. There is nothing in the
record to indicate that Respondent had an i mm nent need or
intention to reuse the cylinders. |, therefore, affirmthe
vi ol ati on and assess a $25 civil penalty.

Citations No. 4331720 and No. 4331561: On July 28, M.
Wbodri ng operated a front end | oader at the worksite which did
not have an operational reverse signal alarm and which was not
equi pped with a seat belt (Tr. 133-147, 244, 280-81). The | oader
had been used at the worksite for several days but the alarm
apparently worked prior to July 28 (Tr. 147, 280-81).
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Wth regard to the reverse signal alarm Inspector Gol dade
cited Respondent for a significant and substantial violation of
30 C. F. R b56.14132(a). The parties disagree as to how many
peopl e were exposed to the hazard of being hit by the front end
| oader while it was being operated in reverse. M. Wodring
contends that only he and M. Hartley were at the worksite on
July 28 (Tr. 280-81). The inspector insists that he observed
several trucks come to the site to be | oaded by M. Wodring and
that the drivers got out of their trucks and wal ked around
(Tr. 137-38). | credit the testinmny of Inspector Col dade on
this point. VWhen pressed on his recollection, M. Wodring
admtted that, while he did not remenber any trucks comng to the
site that day, he was not be sure (Tr. 280-84).

I conclude that injury was reasonably |likely and was |ikely
to be serious. |, therefore, affirman "S&S" violation with
regard to the reverse signal alarmand assess a $100 penalty in
view of the gravity of the violation and M. Wodring' s awareness
of the violation.

The absence of the seat belt is undisputed. Apparently,
M. Wbodri ng, Respondent’'s owner, was the only person exposed to
a hazard due to this violation. An individual or individuals who
own a mne are "mners" within the nmeaning of the Act,
30 U.S.C. 0O802(g), Marshall v. Kraynak, 604 F.2d 231 (3d Cir
1979). Thus, the fact that only M. Wodring was exposed to the
violation is no inpedinment to affirmng the citation

| also have no difficulty in finding this violation to be
significant and substantial. Vehicle accidents are commopn at
m nes and simlar worksites. The absence of a seat belt is
reasonably likely to result in an injury of a serious nature.

The Secretary proposed a $136 civil penalty for this

violation. | assess a $75 penalty in part because on this record
it appears that only Respondent's owner was exposed to the
hazards created by the violation. | would consider Respondent's

negli gence to be nuch greater and woul d assess a nuch | arger
penalty if the record indicated that an enpl oyee was assigned to
use equi pment whi ch Respondent knew was not equi pped with a
required safety device.

Citation No. 4331570: |nspector Col dade | ooked inside a van
i n which Respondent stored flammabl e and conbusti bl e greases and
oils. He saw no sign prohibiting snoking or open flanes
(Tr. 148-151). ol dade, therefore, issued Respondent a citation
all eging a violation of section 56.4101, which provides that,
"[r]eadily visible signs prohibiting snoking and open flames
shal |l be posted where a fire or explosion hazard exists."

M. Wodring testified that there were signs on the outside
doors of the truck which prohibited snmoking (Tr. 285-87). He
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concedes that they did not mention open flanmes (Tr. 287). VWile
CGol dade recalls that there were no signs on the outside of the
van, his testinony reveals sufficient uncertainty that | credit
M. Woodring (Tr. 149).

The requisite signs on the outside of the vehicle would
appear to satisfy the standard if the doors to the van were kept
cl osed when the greases and oils were not being used. However,
since there was adm ttedly no sign prohibiting open flanes |
affirmthe violation.

| assess a $10 civil penalty because | consider the gravity
and negligence for this violation to be very low. The presence
of a no snoking sign should have been sufficient to alert a
reasonabl e person that open flanmes woul d be hazardous in the back
of the van as well.

Citation No. 4331575: During the inspection Gol dade sanpl ed
t he noi se exposure of miner Joseph Hartley and M. Wbodring (Tr.
153- 162, Exh. P-15). Wodring's exposure was well under the
perm ssi bl e exposure Iimt (PEL) in section 56.5050(a) of 90 dba
averaged over an 8-hour shift. However, Hartley was exposed to
677% of the PEL, or average of 103 dba (Tr. 158-59, Exh. G 15).

This violation was cited as non-significant and substantia
because M. Hartley was wearing earplugs which woul d reduce the
noi se reaching his inner ear by 31 dba--if he was wearing them
properly (Tr. 163, citation 4331575, block 8). A violation is
est abl i shed because there is a feasible engineering control by
which M. Hartley's noise exposure could have been brought within
the limts of the standard. That control is an insulated, air-
condi tioned crusher control booth, which is used by many ot her
operators (Tr. 163-64).

I conclude that the inspector's unrebutted testinony that
such booths are enpl oyed on nmany crushers establishes the
feasibility of this control method under existing Comm ssion
precedent, Callanan Industries, Inc., 5 FMSHRC 1900
(Novenber 1983). G ven the fact that M. Hartley was wearing ear
protection and that the evidence indicates that normally
AAAAAAAAAAA
FOOTNOTE 1

Respondent at page 8 of its post-trial brief suggests that
MSHA' s noi se exposure calculation is flawed because it did not
account for the fact that M. Wodring and M. Hartley took a
lunch break at the site or that the nachinery was off for about
an hour due to a nechanical breakdown. Actually, sanpling during
these periods is to the operator's benefit as the relatively
| ower noi se exposure of the lunch break and repair period
produces a | ower tine-weighted average for the whole day (Tr.
238-40) .
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M. Woodring did not enploy anyone who woul d be exposed to
excessive noise levels, | assess a civil penalty of $25.

Citation No. 4331733: During the inspection sanples were
taken of the respirable dust exposure of M. Wodring and M.
Hartley (Tr. 182). The sanples taken by M. Col dade were
anal yzed by MSHA's | aboratory in Denver, Col orado and were
deternmined to consist of approximately 24%silica (Tr. 176).

MSHA' s regul ation, at 30 C.F. R 0O 56.5001, incorporates by
reference the threshold limt values (TLVs) adopted by the
Ameri can Conference of Covernnental Industrial Hygienists in
1973. Gven 24%silica the TLV all ows exposure to an 8-hour time
wei ghted average of 37 milligrans of respirable dust per cubic
meter of air (Tr. 176-78). M. Hartley was exposed to 95
mlligrams (Tr. 173-74, 178, Exh. G 16).

This violation was characterized as significant and
substantial because M. Hartley wore only a paper dust mask,
whi ch woul d be virtually useless in protecting himfromthe
effects of respirable silica (Tr. 187, 235). Exposure to
excessi ve anmounts of respirable dust containing silicais
reasonably likely to contribute to the devel opnent of serious
respirabl e disease (Tr. 185-87), and is presunmed to be "S&S",
Twentym | e Coal Conpany, 15 FMSHRC 941 (June 1993).

The citation also charged a violation of section 56.5005 for
failure to inplenent feasible engineering controls. The record
establishes that the type of control booth discussed with
reference to the noise violation is such a feasible engineering
control (Tr. 188-89). I, therefore, affirmthe citation with
regard to both of the standards cited.

| assess a $136 civil penalty for this citation, as proposed
by the Secretary of Labor. The gravity of the violation warrants
such a penalty, as does Respondent's negligence. Virtually al
crushi ng operations encounter sone silica and one in this
busi ness should be aware that they are Iikely to be in violation
of these standards if they do not inplement engineering controls
(Tr. 194-96)
AAAAAAAAAAA
FOOTNOTE 2

This citation is incorrectly described as number 4331437 at
Tr. 169. Additionally the term"error factor" used in discussing
this citation was incorrectly transcribed as "air factor" at
Tr. 181.

FOOTNOTE 3
However, at Respondent's other worksite at Bl acknore Lane near
Col unmbia Falls, Montana, little dust is generated because the

ground is frozen year-round (Tr. 317-18).
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ORDER

The followi ng penalties shall be paid for the citations
listed below within 30 days of this decision

Citation Penal ty
4331562 $111
4331564 $ 25
4331565 $ 25
4331566 $ 75
4331567 $111
4331568 $ 25
4331571 $ 25
4331572 $ 25
4331573 $ 25
4331574 $ 25
4331720 $100
4331561 $ 75
4331570 $ 10
4331575 $ 25
4331733 $136
Tot al : $818

Citations No. 4331563 and No. 4331569 and the correspondi ng
proposed penalties are vacated.

Arthur J. Anthan
Adm ni strative Law Judge

Di stribution:

Kristi Floyd, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U S. Departnent of
Labor, 1999 Broadway, Suite # 1600, Denver, CO 80202-5716
(Certified Mail)

Mark L. Stermitz, Esq., Warden, Christiansen, Johnson, & Berg,
P. O Box 3038, Kalispell, MI 59903-3038 (Certified Mil)
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